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2023 Annual Report
H.O.M.E. of Mackinac County is proud to present highlights of the past year including: a summary of
the services provided, our 2023 Financial Statement, IRS form 990 and agency Strategic Plan for 2024.

Homeownership Counseling (offered to all 15 Counties of Michigan’s Upper Peninsula)
H.O.M.E. of Mackinac County continues to provide Homeownership Counseling to the residents of
Michigan’s Upper Peninsula. Due to the remoteness of our region, our staff has developed expertise in
delivering these services remotely through phone interview by online programs provided by eHome
America for Homebuyer Pre-purchase and Financial Management Education.

Homebuyer’s Pre-purchase Education: 66 completed homebuyer’s education courses
Prepurchase Homebuyer Counseling 18 participated set goals and were provided resources
Financial Capabilities Education: 10 individuals set goals and received certificates
Mortgage and Property Tax Default 48 households set goals and were provided resources
Post Purchase Non-Default Counseling 1 households set goals and were provided resources

Foreclosure & Post Purchase Outcome Details: H.O.M.E. assisted participants to understand their
situation and apply for options to help them move forward. Some of the resources utilized included
MIHAF (Michigan Homeowner Assistance Fund), mortgage forbearance, mortgage loan modification or
refinance, mortgage and property tax repayment plans, property tax foreclosure extensions, poverty
exemptions for property taxes, deed in lieu of foreclosure and cash for keys.

Pre-Purchase Counseling: Participants in this program were assisted to understand barriers that might
prevent them from pursuing home ownership. H.O.M.E. helped them to review and understand their
credit report and create plans to clean up any accounts in collection and reduce their monthly debt. They
reviewed their income and learned how their debt-to-income affects affordability.

SMTMD (Show Me the Money Day) and Outreach Events: H.O.M.E. hosted a SMTMD in
Mackinac and Chippewa Counties and also participated in Project Backpack events and resource fairs.
This outreach provided information regarding financial and community resources to 429 households in
Mackinac, Luce and Chippewa.

FSS — Family Self Sufficiency Coordination: H.O.M.E. of Mackinac County provided coordination
for 75 households through this innovative, voluntary program that helps Michigan State Housing
Development Authority (MSHDA) housing voucher participants achieve economic independence over
a five-year period. Participants work with a case manager to assess their strengths, identify barriers, set
goals and achieve them. Benefits of the FSS program include improving or gaining employment and/or
education, developing a household budget, improving financing skills, improving credit and financial
situation, ending the need for rental assistance, and escrowing money to assist with self-sufficiency

Mission
H.O0.M.E. of Mackinac County is a not-for-profit organization established to facilitate, arrange, create and sustain
adequate housing with an emphasis on affordable home ownership. H.O.M.E. shall provide affordable housing for persons
of low and moderate income. H.O.M.E. shall provide housing counseling.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.)
of Mackinac County

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of
Mackinac County, (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December
31, 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County as of December 31, 2023, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Housing Opportunities Made
Equal (H.O.M.E) of Mackinac County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E) of
Mackinac County's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are available to be issued.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E) of Mackinac County's internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E) of Mackinac County's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Anderson, Tackman & Company, PL.C
Certified Public Accountants
Kincheloe, Michigan

February 1, 2024
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Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County
Statement of Financial Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash $ 158,142
Grants Receivable 10,579
Total Current Assets 168,721
Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 1,765
Operating Lease Right-of-use Asset 4,061
TOTAL ASSETS $ 174,547

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities

Accrued Expenses 7,844
Operating Lease Liability 4,061
Net Assets

Without Donor Restrictions 162,642

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 174,547

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Without Donor
Restrictions
Support
Grants $ 179,723
Contributions 8,404
Contributions of non-financial assets 85
Special Events 14,146
Other 4,600
Total Revenue 206,958
Expenses
Program Services 110,896
Supporting Services
Management and General 23,774
Fundraising 7,483
Total Expenses 142,153
Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 64,805
NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 97,837
NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS, END OF YEAR $ 162,642

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County

Salaries
Payroll Taxes

Homeownership Counseling
Professional Services

Supplies
Telephone

Postage and Shipping

Occupancy

Credit Reports

Advertising
Travel
Insurance

Miscellaneous

Total Expenses Before Depreciation

Depreciation

Total Expenses

Program Services

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Supporting Services

Housing Management

Education Development Total and General Fundraising Totals
$ 85,701 $ 2,002 $ 87,703 $ 13,717 $ 3,127 $ 104,547
6,697 159 6,856 1,165 240 8,261
1,925 - 1,925 - - 1,925
- - - 5,126 - 5,126
2,210 245 2,455 205 3,264 5,924
2,136 - 2,136 72 - 2,208
862 - 862 - 72 934
3,060 - 3,060 1,020 755 4,835
2,593 - 2,593 - - 2,593
780 - 780 - - 780
1,806 - 1,806 - - 1,806
- - - 1,775 - 1,775
720 - 720 - 25 745
108,490 2,406 110,896 23,080 7,483 141,459
- - - 694 - 694
§ 108,490 $ 2,406 § 110,896 $ 23,774 $ 7,483 $ 142,153

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in Net Assets $ 64,805
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash used by operating activities

Depreciation 694
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Grants Receivable 4)
Accounts Payable (143)
Accrued Expenses (1,986)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 63,366
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of Equipment (1,822)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (1,822)
Net Increase in Cash 61,544
Cash, Beginning of Year 96,598
Cash, End of Year $ 158,142

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023

NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ENTITY:

Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County (“the Organization™) is a Michigan non-profit
corporation. Its purpose is to facilitate, arrange, and create and sustain adequate housing with an emphasis on
affordable home ownership for persons of low and moderate income. The Organization also provides pre- and
post-purchase homeownership counseling for 15 counties in Michigan’s Upper Peninsula in partnership with
MSHDA (Michigan State Housing Development Authority).

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Basis of Accounting
The Organization maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted

accounting principles. The Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities
according to two classes of net assets: net assets without donor restriction and net assets with donor restriction.

Net Assets Without Donor Restriction — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may
be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization’s management and the board of directors.

Net Assets With Donor Restriction — Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some
donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the
funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restriction unless use of the related asset is limited
by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are recorded as decreases in net assets without donor restriction. Gains
and losses on assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions
unless their use in restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law. Expirations of donor restrictions on net assets
(i.e., the donor-stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated passage of time has elapsed) are reported
as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Contributions - Contributions, including cash, other assets, and unconditional promises to give, are recognized as
revenues in the period received. Contributions whose restrictions are met in the same period they are received are
recorded as revenue in net assets with donor restrictions and net assets released from restrictions. Unconditional
pledges with terms greater than one year are initially recorded at fair value based on their estimated future cash
flows. Pledges are discounted to present value using a discount rate commensurate with the risk involved.
Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional; that is, when the conditions on
which they depend are substantially met. Gifts of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value.

Grants and contracts — Individual governmental and private grant arrangements are evaluated and determined
whether they are nonreciprocal, meaning the granting entity has not received a direct benefit of commensurate
value in exchange for the resources provided. Instead, revenue is recognized like a conditional contribution, when
the barrier to entitlement is overcome. The barrier to entitlement is considered overcome when expenditures
associated with each grant are determined to be allowable and all other significant conditions of the grant are met.



Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date
of financial statements. These estimates and assumptions also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments including cash, grants and fundraising receivables, and accounts
payable and accrued expenses approximate their fair values because of the relatively short maturity of these
instruments.

Cash

For the purpose of the statement of financial position and the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers as
cash all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable are recorded at the amount management expects to collect from the outstanding balances.
Management considers all grants to be collectible and, therefore, has not established a provision for uncollectible
grants.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, except for donated items which are recorded at fair value at the date of
donation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the assets’ estimated useful lives. When
assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the accumulated depreciation are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to operations
as incurred. Significant renewals and betterments of $500 or more are capitalized.

Depreciation is computed using the following useful lives under the straight-line method:

Office equipment 5 years
Valuation of Long-Lived Assets
In accordance with the provisions of the accounting pronouncement on accounting for the impairment or disposal
of long-lived assets, the Organization reviews long-lived assets, including property and equipment, for impairment
whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be

fully recoverable. Management has determined that no assessment was required for the period presented in the
financial statements.



Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (Continued)

Compensated Absences

Employees can accrue paid time off (“PTO”) time and may carry over a maximum of 160 hours to the following
year. PTO time can be used at any time with supervisory approval and is compensated upon termination or
retirement provided the employee gives two-week notice. The accrual for PTO time is included in accrued
liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Contributed Non-financial Assets

A number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time to the Organization’s program service and
fundraising campaigns during the year; however, these donated services are not reflected in the financial statements
since these services are not professional in nature, and, as such, do not meet the recognition criteria prescribed by
generally accepted accounting principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation based
on comparable items. Donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair values of the services
received as noted on invoices from the services provider.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses consist of costs related to providing home ownership counseling, providing affordable housing
opportunities to low- and moderate-income earners and administrative functions. These costs have been
summarized on a functional basis in the Statement of Functional Expenses. The statement of functional expenses
presents the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Certain costs are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function and, therefore, require allocation among the programs and supporting services
benefited. Management believes their allocations are done on a reasonable and consistent basis. Most personnel
costs, office expenses, professional services, and other expenses are identified with a specific program or
supporting function at the time they are incurred and are reported accordingly. However, some of these expenses
require allocation, which is done based on estimates of time and effort.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision or liability for federal taxes has been included in the
accompanying financial statements. The Organization is exempt from federal income tax on all income except
unrelated business income as noted under Section 511 of the Internal Revenue Code. Internal Revenue code
section 513(a) defines an unrelated trade or business of an exempt organization as any trade or business which is
not substantially related to the exercise or performance of its exempt purpose. The Organization did not have any
unrelated business income.

Subsequent Events

Management evaluates events occurring subsequent to the date of the financial statements in determining the
accounting for and disclosure of transactions and events that affect the financial statements. Subsequent events
have been evaluated through February 1, 2024, which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.



Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023

NOTE C- CASH:

The Organization's composition of cash as of December 31, 2023, (carrying amount) is summarized as follows:

Cash on Hand $ 100
Checking and Savings 158,042
$ 158,142

On December 31, 2023, the carrying amount of the Organization’s deposits was $158,042 and the bank balance was
$161,967. Of the bank balance, 100% was covered by insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) of $250,000.

NOTE D - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Depreciation of equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. A
summary of additions and disposals is as follows:

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
Office Equipment $ 4,360 $ 1,822 $ -5 6,182
Less: Accumulated depreciation (3.723) (694) - (4.417)
Net Property and Equipment $ 637 $ (1,128) $ - 8 1,765

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2023 was $694.
NOTE E - MAJOR SOURCE OF FUNDS:
The Organization receives a major portion of its revenues and support from federal funds passed through MSHDA.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, revenues from MSHDA amounted to $97,588 or 47% of revenues. It is
anticipated that MSHDA will continue to support the Organization in the future.

NOTE F - FUNDRAISING AND SPECIAL EVENTS:

During the year, the Organization had a Christmas auction fundraiser. Total fundraising expense for the year ended
December 31, 2023 was $7,483.

NOTE G - CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS:

For the year ended December 31, 2023, contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the statement of activities
included the following:

Event facilities $ 85
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Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023

NOTE H - LEASES:

The Organization has an operating lease of office space. The lease has a remaining lease term of 1 year and
includes the option to terminate the lease by the lessee at any time with 90 days notification. The operating lease
does not provide an implicit rate. The lease asset and liability were calculated utilizing the risk-free discount rate
(2%), according to the Organization’s elected policy.

The following summarizes the line items in the statements of financial position which include amounts for the
operating lease as of December 31, 2023:

Operating lease right-of-use-asset $ 4,061

Operating lease liability $ 4,061

The maturities of the operating lease liability as of December 31, 2023 were as follows:

Year Ending December 31:
2024 $ 4,080
Less: interest 19
Present value of operating lease liability $ 4,061

The following summarizes the line items in the statements of activities which include the components of lease
expense for the year ended December 31, 2023:

Operating lease expense included in management

and general expenses $ 1,020
Operating lease expense included in program services 3,060
$ 4,080

The following summarizes cash flow information related to leases for the year ended December 31, 2023:

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement
of lease liability:
Operating cash flows from operating lease $ 4,080

11



Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023

NOTE I1- LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS:

The Organization’s working capital and cash flows are directly related to MSHDA grant funded projects as well as
home ownership counseling. Monthly cash outflows vary based upon existence of a home rehabilitation project.
Other sources of revenue (other local grants and donations) have allowed the Organization to operate without the need
for an operating line of credit.

The following reflects the Organization’s financial assets as of the balance sheet date:

Cash $ 158,142
Grants Receivable 10.579

Total financial assets available to meet cash
needs for expenditures within one year $ 168,721

NOTE J - CONTINGENCIES:

The Organization receives significant assistance from MSHDA. This requires compliance with terms and conditions
specified in the applicable contracts and are subject to examination by the agency. Any disallowed costs from such
examination could become a liability. It is the opinion of management that any such disallowed claims will not have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors

Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.)
of Mackinac County

396 N. State Street

St. Ignace, M1 49781

We have audited the financial statements of Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County,
for the year ended December 31, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated February 1, 2024. Professional
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have
communicated such information in our letter to you dated January 29, 2024. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used by Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County are described in Note B to the
financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2023. We noted no transactions entered by the Organization during the year for which there is a
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

e Management’s estimate of the depreciation expense is based on estimated useful lives of the underlying
asset. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation expense estimate in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

16978 S Riley Kincheloe, MI 49788
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Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.)
of Mackinac County
Page 2

e Management’s estimate of the allocation of expenses in the statement of functional expenses is based upon
a time study of hours worked. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop this
allocation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that
are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all
such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by
management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Disagreement with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements
or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated February 1, 2024.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us as to
determine the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,

with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred
in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.



Housing Opportunities Made Equal (H.O.M.E.)
of Mackinac County
Page 3

Comments and Recommendations

In-Kind Donations

During our review of board minutes, it was noted that the Organization received donated office furniture in the
current year that meets the definition of an in-kind donation. Such donation was not recorded on the financial
statements. Additionally, a determination of the fair market value of the office furniture was not made at the time
of donation. Although the estimated fair market value was deemed immaterial once evaluated during fieldwork, it is
recommended that the Organization implement a gift acceptance policy for non-financial assets to ensure such
evaluation is done at the time of donation and properly recognized in the financial statements, as applicable.

Other Matters

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of Housing Opportunities
Made Equal (H.O.M.E.) of Mackinac County and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

We would like to express our appreciation, as well as that our staff, for the excellent cooperation we received while
performing the audit. If we can be of any assistance in implementing the above recommendations, please contact
us.

Anderson, Tackman & Company, PL.C
Certified Public Accountants
Kincheloe, Michigan

February 1, 2024
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Form 990 Two Year Comparison Report 2022 & 2023
For calendar year 2023, or tax year beginning , ending
Name Taxpayer ldentification Number
HOUSI NG CPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL
(HOVE) OF NACKI NAC COUNTY 38- 3330709
2022 2023 Differences
L. Contributions, gifs, grants ... L 34, 395 32, 344 - 2,051
2. Membership dues and assessments 2.
3. Government contributions and grants 3. 113, 383 170,014 56, 631
“; 4. Program service revenue 4. 5,100 4, 600 - 500
o | 5 Investment income 5.
> | 6. Proceeds from tax exempt bonds 6.
é 7. Net gain or (loss) from sale of assets other than inventory 7.
8. Net income or (loss) from fundraising events 8. - 3, 240 - 3,264 -24
9. Net income or (loss) from gaming 9.
10. Net gain or (loss) on sales of inventory 10.
11. Other revenue 11
[12. Total revenue. Add lines 1 through 11 12. 149, 638 203, 694 54, 056
13. Grants and similar amounts paid ... 13,
14. Benefits paid to or for members 14.
o [15. Compensation of officers, directors, trustees, etc. 15. 43, 789 52, 848 9, 059
o 16. Salaries, other compensation, and employee benefits 16. 51, 156 59, 960 8,804
o [17. Professional fundraising fees 17.
3 18. Other professional fees 18. 7, 332 7, 719 387
W h9. Occupancy, rent, utilities, and maintenance 19. 4,461 4,835 374
P0. Depreciation and Depletion .. ... ... 20. 694 694
21. Other expenses 21 15,612 12, 833 -2, 779
22. Total expenses. Add lines 13 through22 22. 123, 044 138, 889 15, 845
3. Excess or (Deficit). Subtract line 22 from line 12 23. 26, 594 64, 805 38, 211
24. Total exempt revenue 24. 149, 638 203, 694 54, 056
25 TOtal unrelated revenue 25
_5 26. Total excludable revenuve 26. 5,100 4, 600 - 500
é P7. Total assets 27. 115, 889 174,547 58, 658
S p8. Total liabiltes 28. 18, 052 11, 905 -6, 147
f 29. Retained earmings 29. 97, 837 162, 642 64, 805
g 30. Number of voting members of governing body 30. 11 11
O [31. Number of independent voting members of governing body 31 11 11
B82. Number of employees 32. 3 3
33. Number of volunteers 33.] 33 25
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IRS E-file Signature Authorization
Fom 3879-TE for a Tax Exempt Entity OB MNo- 16450047
For calendar year 2023, or fiscal year beginning . .. .. .............., 2023, andending . .. ... ........, 20 ... ..
Department of the Treasury Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 2023
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879TE for the latest information.
Name f le HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL W or SN
(HOVE) OF NMACKI NAC COUNTY 38- 3330709

Name and title of officer or person subject to tax J ULl E Hl LL
PRESI DENT/ CHAI R

Part | Type of Return and Return Information
Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-TE and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. Form
8038-CP and Form 5330 filers may enter dollars and cents. For all other forms, enter whole dollars only. If you check the box on line 1a, 2a,
3a, 4a, 5a, 6a, 7a, 8a, 9a, or 10a below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was blank, then leave line 1b, 2b,
3b, 4b, 5b, 6b, 7b, 8b, 9b, or 10b, whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0O- on the return, then enter -0- on the
applicable line below. Do not complete more than one line in Part I.

la Form 990 check here == X b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1b 203, 694
2a Form 990-EZ check here b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, lne9) 2b
3a Form 1120-POL check here | | b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line22) 3b
4a Form 990-PF check here | | b Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part V, line5) 4b
5a Form 8368 check here || b Balance due (Form 8868, line 3¢) ... 5b
6a Form 990-T check here b Total tax (Form 990-T, Part Ill, line4) 6b
7a Form 4720 check here E b Total tax (Form 4720, Part lll, line 1) ......................................... 7b
8a Form 5227 check here L { b FMV of assets at end of tax year (Form 5227, ltemD) ................... 8b
9a Form 5330 check here L | b Tax due (Form 5330, Partll, line 19) ... ... ............................... 9b
10a Form 8038-CP check here ... .. .. L 1 b Amount of credit payment requested (Form 8038-CP, Part Ill, line 22) .. 10b
Part Il Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer or Person Subject to Tax
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above entity or |:| | am a person subject to tax with respect to (hame
of entity) , (EIN) and that | have examined a copy of the

2023 electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements, and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and
complete. | further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy of the electronic return. | consent to allow my
intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO) to send the return to the IRS and to receive from the IRS (a) an
acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transmission, (b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or refund, and (c)
the date of any refund. If applicable, | authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal
(direct debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the federal taxes owed on this
return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, | must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at
1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. | also authorize the financial institutions involved in the
processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive confidential information necessary to answer inquiries and resolve issues related to
the payment. | have selected a personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the electronic return and, if applicable, the consent to
electronic funds withdrawal.

PIN: check one box only

|XI | authorize ANDERSO\L TACKNAN & COVPANY ) PLC to enter my PIN 80167 as my signature
ERO firm name Enter five numbers, but

do not enter all zeros

on the tax year 2023 electronically filed return. If | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state
agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, | also authorize the aforementioned ERO to enter my PIN on the
return’s disclosure consent screen.

|:| As an officer or person subject to tax with respect to the entity, | will enter my PIN as my signature on the tax year 2023 electronically

filed return. If | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part
of the IRS Fed/State program, | will enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen.
o 03/ 20/ 24

Signature of officer or person subject to tax

Part Il Certification _and Authentication
ERO's EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification
number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN. | 38731186300 |

Do not enter all zeros

| certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2023 electronically filed return indicated above. | confirm that |
am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF) Information for Authorized IRS e-file
Providers for Business Returns.

TORL_KRU SE, CPA .. _03/20/24

ERO's signature

ERO Must Retain This Form — See Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see back of form. Form 8879-TE (2023)
DAA
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Anderson,Tackman & Company, PLC
16978 S Riley Ave
Kincheloe, M1 49788
906-495-5952

Dear Board of Directors;

We appreciate the opportunity to work with you. To minimize the possibility of a misunderstanding
between us, we are setting forth pertinent information about the services we will perform for you.

We will prepare your 2023 Form 990 Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax and stete return, as
applicable.

We will not prepare any tax returns other than those identified above, without your written request, and our
written consent to do so. We will rely upon the completeness and accuracy of the information and
representations you provide to us to prepare your tax returns. We will not prepare financiad statements or
perform valuations of any kind. We will not audit or otherwise verify the data you submit to us, although we
may ask you to clarify certain information.

We will prepare the above-referenced tax returns solely to assist you with your tax filing obligations with
the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") and applicable state and local tax authorities. Our work is not
intended to benefit or influence any third party, including any entity or investment which may seek to
evaluate your creditworthiness or financial strength. You agree to indemnify and hold us harmless from any
and dl claims arising from the use of the tax returns for any purpose other than complying with your tax
filing obligations regardless of the nature of the claim, excepting claims arising from our gross negligence
or intentional wrongful acts.

Our engagement does not include any procedures designed to detect errors, fraud, theft, or other
wrongdoing. Therefore, our engagement cannot be relied upon to disclose such matters. In addition, we are
not responsible for identifying or communicating deficiencies in your interna controls. You are responsible
for developing and implementing internal controls applicable to your operations.

Assisting you with your compliance with the Corporate Transparency Act ("CTA"), including beneficia
ownership information ("BOI") reporting, is not within the scope of this engagement. You have sole
responsibility for your compliance with the CTA, including its BOI reporting requirements and the
collection of relevant ownership information. We shall have no liability resulting from your failure to
comply with CTA. Information regarding the BOI reporting requirements can be found at

<https:.//www fincen.gov/boi> . Consider consulting with legd counsel if you have questions regarding the
applicability of the CTA's reporting requirements and issues surrounding the collection of relevant
ownership information.

CPA Firm Responsibilities

It is our duty to prepare your returns based on the same standard of care that a reasonable tax return
preparer would exercise in this type of engagement. Unless otherwise noted, the applicable standard of care
for a "reasonable tax return preparer” shall be based upon the following pronouncements:
- the Statements on Standards for Tax Services ("SSTS") issued by the American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA"),

U.S. Treasury Department Circular 230 ("Circular 230"),

the Internal Revenue Code, Treasury Regulations, and any applicable stateflocal corollaries

(collectively, "the Code").
As tax return preparers, these pronouncements also prohibit us from signing a tax return unless we have a
reasonable beief that there is substantial authority for tax positions taken on the tax return, or we have a
reasonable basis for tax return positions taken on the return which are disclosed as required by the Code. If
you request that we report a tax position on your return which we fed is contrary to published guidance,
frivolous, or awilful attempt to evade tax, we will be unable to proceed. If you are unwilling to disclose a
position where required or we conclude that your failure to disclose does not permit us to sign your tax
return, we will be unable to proceed.
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It is your responsibility to safeguard your assets and maintain accurate records pertaining to transactions.
We will not hold your property in trust for you, or otherwise accept fiduciary duties in the performance of
the engagement.

Anderson, Tackman & Company, PLC will not make any management decisions or perform management
functions on your behdlf.

Arguable positions

If there are conflicting interpretations of tax law, or if tax law is unclear, we will explain the possible
positions that may be taken in order for us to sign your return. We will follow the position you request,
provided it is consistent with our understanding of tax reference materials and our professional standards.
Tax reference materias include, but are not limited to, the Code, Revenue Rulings, Revenue Procedures,
court cases, and similar state and local guidance. If the IRS, state or local tax authorities later contest the
position you select, additional tax, penalties, and interest may be assessed. You will be responsible for these
amounts, as well as any related professiona fees you may incur, to respond to the tax authority.

Bookkeeping assistance

We may deem it necessary to provide you with accounting and bookkeeping assistance solely for the
purpose of preparing the tax returns. These services will be performed soldly in accordance with the AICPA
Code of Professional Conduct. In the event we conclude that such services are necessary to prepare your tax
returns, these services will be hilled at our standard hourly rates and will be subject to the terms of this
Agreament.

Government_inquiries

This engagement does not include responding to inquiries by any governmenta agency or tax authority. If
you are contacted by a tax authority, either for an examination or other inquiry, you may request our
assistance in responding. Our fees for such services are at our standard rates and would be covered under a
separate engagement.

Third party requests

We will not respond to any reguest from banks, mortgage brokers or others for verification of any
information reported on these tax returns. We do not communicate with third parties or provide them with
copies of tax returns.

Reliance on others

There may be times when you engage another advisor to assist you. If you wish to take a tax position based
upon the advice of another advisor, before we are able to sign your tax return, we must comply with the
applicable provisions of the Code and the SSTS.

We will review the other advisor's work, including a written statement from the advisor describing the
statutory basis for the position and the suggested disclosure standard to appropriately report the position. If
additiona research or disclosure is required, you agree to pay for the additional charges necessary to
complete the disclosure or research.

Moreover, you understand that the IRS, state or loca tax authority may disagree with the position taken on
the return. If this occurs, you will be responsible for any additiona tax, pendties and interest, as well as any
related professiona fees, you may incur.

If, after review of the work prepared by your other advisor, we determine that we are unable to sign the tax
return, we will be unable to proceed.

Adggressive tax strategies

Certain tax positions or strategies, while not currently identified as a reportable transaction by the IRS, may
ultimately be determined to be so in the future. Consequently, you agree to advise us of any transaction you
enter into that entitles you to disproportionate tax benefits (deductions, credits, or refunds), that generates
significant income deferral or non-recognition, or that generates significant tax losses without
corresponding cash impacts ("aggressive tax strategy”). If you fail to timely notify us, in writing, of any
aggressive tax strategy you have entered into, you will be responsible for any liability, including but not
limited to, additional tax, penalties, interest and related professional fees.
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Client Responsibilities

You acknowledge and agree that your failure to comply with the responsibilities enumerated in this section
may result in economic or other loss to you, such as disallowance of tax deductions or credits claimed,
additiona tax, penaties or interest assessed against you, or loss of administrative rights. You agree to
accept responsibility for any consequences of your failure to fulfil your responsibilities.

You will provide us with atria balance and other supporting data necessary to prepare your tax returns.
You are confirming that you will furnish us with al the information required for preparing the return. You
are responsible for providing us with accurate and complete information, including income and activities
outside of the U.S. or your home dtate.

Unrelated business taxable income

Entities that have received tax-exempt status from the IRS may ill owe tax if they have unrelated business
taxable income ("UBTI"). An entity which has taxable income from a trade or business activity not
substantialy related to its tax-exempt purpose or from debt-financed property (or receives a K-1 with
similar activity) may have UBTI that must be reported separately. You are responsible for informing us of
any potential UBTI or activities which you conduct that are not directly related to your tax-exempt purpose.

Subgtantiation requirements

You are responsible for providing a donor who makes a charitable contribution of $250 or more with a
written acknowledgement by the earlier of the date on which the donor files a tax return for the tax year in
which the contribution was made or the due date, including extensions, for that return. In addition, you
should retain a copy of this acknowledgement for your records. At your written request, we are available to
provide you with written answers to your questions regarding this matter. Only written advice may be relied
upon. You agree to hold our firm harmless with respect to any liability, including but not limited to,
additiond tax, pendlties, interest, and professiona fees resulting from the disallowance of tax deductions
due to inadequate substantiation.

Documentation

You are responsible for maintaining adequate documentation to substantiate the accuracy and completeness
of your tax returns. Our records are not a substitute for yours. Y ou should retain all documents that provide
evidence and support for reported income, credits, deductions, and other information on your returns, as
required under applicable tax laws and regulations. You represent that you have such documentation and
can produce it, if necessary, to respond to any examination or inquiry by tax authorities. You will be
responsible for any liability, including but not limited to, additiona tax, penalties, interest and related
professional fees, resulting from the disallowance of tax deductions due to inadequate documentation.

Personal expenses

You are responsible for ensuring that persona expenses, if any, are segregated from business expenses and
that expenses such as medls, trave, vehicle use, gifts, and related expenses are supported by documentation
and records required by the IRS and other tax authorities.

State and locd filing obligations

You are responsible for fulfilling your filing obligations with any state or local tax authorities, including but
not limited to, income, franchise, sales, use, and property taxes or abandoned and unclaimed property. The
preparation of any state or loca tax return not listed above is not within the scope of our engagement. If
upon review of the information you have provided to us, including information that comes to our attention,
we believe that you may have additiona filing obligations, we will notify you. You will be responsible for
tax due, and penalties associated with the failure to file or untimely filing of any form for which we were not

engaged to prepare.
U.S. filing obligations related to foreign investments and activities

U.S. persons generally must report income and activities related to both domestic and foreign assets
(worldwide income). You are responsible for fulfilling your filing obligations related to foreign activity
where required. U.S. reporting requirements related to foreign activity are very complex. Contact us
immediately if you have:
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Ownership of, investment in, or officer responsibilities for a corporation, partnership, or other business
entity formed under the laws of another country.

Fiduciary, grantor, or beneficiary relationships in connection with an entity formed under the laws
of another country.

Ownership of, signature authority over, or control over any financial account held in a financia
ingtitution located in another country.

Citizenship or government-approved employment/visa status with a country other than the U.S.
(including anyone in your immediate household, or your parents who live outside the U.S)).

Transferred property, including cash, offshore either directly or through the purchase of or
investment in an entity formed under the laws of another country.

Received or have legally-recognizable rights to receive property, including cash, from a trugt,
business, or investment formed under the laws of another country or individua residing in another
country.

Conducted business with any entity or person physicaly located in another country, regardless of
whether such business is for-profit, not for-profit, or informal/irregular.

Received property, including cash, or income from a source outside of the U.S. which is not
reported on a brokerage statement (such as a 1099-B or similar report); or

Any other activity or economic arrangement which takes place outside of the U.S.

Based upon the information you provide, we will use this data to inform you of any additiona filing
requirements, which may include FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
("FBAR"). The FBAR is not a tax return, and its preparation is not within the scope of this engagement.

Failure to timely file the required forms may result in substantia civil and/or crimina penalties. By your
signature below, you agree to provide us with complete and accurate information regarding any foreign
investments in which you have a direct or indirect interest, or over which you have signature authority,
during the above referenced tax year.

If you have any questions regarding the application of the reporting requirements for your foreign interests
or activities, please ask us and we will respond in writing. You will be responsible for tax due, penalties,
and interest associated with the failure to file or untimely filing of any of these forms.

Foreign filing obligations

You are responsible for complying with the tax filing requirements of any other country. You acknowledge
and agree that we have no respongibility to raise these issues with you and that foreign filing obligations are
not within the scope of this engagement.

Digital assets

There are specific tax implications of investing in digital assets (e.g., virtua currencies such as Bitcoin,
non-fungible tokens, virtud real estate and similar assets). The IRS considers these to be property for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. As such, any transactions in, or transactions that use, digital assets are subject
to the same generd tax principles that apply to other property transactions.

If you transacted in digital assets during the tax year, you may have tax consegquences and/or additional
reporting obligations associated with such transactions. Depending on the nature or volume of those
transactions, a change to the scope of our services may be required. You are responsible for providing us
with complete and accurate information, including basis, regarding any transactions in, or transactions that
have used, digital assets during the applicable tax year.

Ultimate responsibility

You have fina responsibility for the accuracy of your tax returns. We will provide you with a copy of your
electronic tax returns and accompanying schedules and statements for review prior to filing with the IRS,
state and locdl tax authorities, as applicable. You agree to review and examine them carefully for accuracy
and completeness.

You will be required to review and sign a completed Form 8879-EO, IRS e-file Sgnature Authorization for
an Exempt Organization, and any similar state and local equivalent authorization form before your returns
can be filed eectronically. We shal not be liable for any penalties or interest resulting from your failure to
timely sign and return Form 8879 or state equivaents. We will not file an extension on your behalf if you
fail to timely sign and return Form 8879 or state equivalents.
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If we are unable to file your return(s) electronically, we will deliver to you a paper copy suitable for mailing
to the taxing authorities. Once delivered to you, you bear full responsibility for reviewing the paper returns
for accuracy, and either signing and timely filing them, along with any payments due, or notifying us of any
issue which may need to be addressed prior to filing.

You have fina respongibility for the payment of your taxes in whatever amount ultimately determined. If
you choose, you may opt to have funds automatically withdrawn from a designated account and transmitted
when your tax return is electronically filed. We will not transmit partial payments. It is your responsibility
to provide us with correct account and routing numbers, to review this information for accuracy prior to
submission of your return, and to ensure that sufficient funds are available at the time of payment. We shall
have no liahility for any tax due, pendties, interest, or overdraft charges which may result from your failure
to ensure sufficient funds are available at the time of payment.

Once your return is complete (e-file acceptance or provision of a paper copy to you), we shal have no
obligation to update your returns for subsequent legidative or administrative changes or future judicia
interpretations under this Agreement.

Extensions of Time to File Tax Returns

It may become necessary to apply for an extension of the filing due dates if there are unresolved issues or
delays in processing, or if we do not receive all of the necessary information from you on atimely basis.
Applying for an extension of time to file may limit your ability to make certain elections, extend the time
available for a government agency to undertake an examination of your return and/or extend the statute of
limitations to file a legd action. If we apply for an extension of time to file because you have not provided
us dl of the information needed to prepare the tax returns by the original due date, you agree to hold our
firm harmless from any consequences arising from any election waived. All taxes owed are due by the
origind filing due date. Additionally, extensions may affect your liability for penalties and interest or
compliance with governmental or other deadlines.

Penalties and Interest Charges

Federa, state, and local tax authorities impose various penalties and interest charges for non-compliance
with tax laws and regulations, including failure to file or late filing of returns, and underpayment of taxes.
You will be responsible for the payment of any additiona tax, pendties, and interest charges imposed by
tax authorities.

Professional Fees

Fees for our services will be a our standard rates, complexity and time to prepare the return. Payment for
sarvice is due when rendered. Y ou acknowledge and agree that in the event we stop work or withdraw from
this engagement as a result of your failure to pay on atimely basis for services rendered as required by this
engagement letter, we shall not be liable for any damages that occur as a result of our ceasing to render
services.

In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via email transmission. We
take reasonable measures to secure your confidential information in our email transmissions. However, as
emails can be intercepted and read, disclosed, or otherwise used or communicated by an unintended third
party, or may not be ddlivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed and only to such parties, we
cannot guarantee or warrant that emails from us will be properly ddlivered to and read only by the
addressee. Therefore, we specifically disclam and waive any ligbility or responsibility whatsoever for
interception or unintentional disclosure or communication of email transmissions, or for the unauthorized
use or failed delivery of emails transmitted by us in connection with the performance of this engagement. In
that regard, you agree that we shall have no liability for any loss or damage to any person or entity resulting
from the use of email transmissions, including any consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or special
damages, such as loss of sales or anticipated profits, or disclosure or communication of confidential or
proprietary information.

We may from time to time and depending on the circumstances and nature of the services we are providing,
share your confidentiad information with third-party service providers, some of whom may be cloud-based,
but we remain committed to maintaining the confidentiaity and security of your information. Accordingly,
we maintain interna policies, procedures and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your persona
information. In addition, we will secure confidentiaity terms with al service providers to maintain the
confidentidity of your information and will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have
appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidentia information to
others. In the event that we are unable to secure appropriate confidentiaity terms with a third-party service
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provider, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information
with the third-party service provider. Although we will use our best efforts to make the sharing of your
information with such third parties secure from unauthorized access, no completely secure system for
electronic data transfer exists. As such, by your signature below, you understand that the firm makes no
warranty, expressed or implied, on the security of eectronic data transfers.

It is our policy to keep records related to this engagement for 5 years. However, Anderson, Tackman &
Company, PLC does not keep any original client records, so we will return those to you at the completion of
the services rendered under this engagement. It is your responsibility to retain and protect your records
(which includes any work product we provide to you as well as any records that we return) for possible
future use, including potential examination by any government or regulatory agencies. Anderson, Tackman
& Company, PLC does not accept responsibility for hosting client information; therefore, you have the sole
responsbility for ensuring you retain and maintain in your possession al your financial and non-financial
information, data and records.

By your signature below, you acknowledge and agree that upon the expiration of the 5-year period,
Anderson, Tackman & Co., PLC shall be free to destroy our records related to this engagement.

Because of the importance of oral and written representations to the effective performance of our services,
you release and indemnify our firm and its personnel from any and dl claims, liabilities, costs and expenses
dtributable to any misrepresentation by you and your representatives.

If any dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree to first try in good faith to settle the dispute
by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Rules for Professional
Accounting and Related Services Disputes, before resorting to litigation. Costs of any mediation proceeding
shall be shared equally by all parties.

Client and accountant both agree that any dispute over fees charged by the accountant to the client will be
submitted for resolution by arbitration in accordance with the applicable rules for resolving professional
accounting and related services disputes of the American Arbitration Association, except that under al
circumstances the arbitrator must follow the laws of Michigan. Such arbitration shall be binding and final.
in agreeing to arbitration, we both acknowledge that, in the event of a dispute over fees charged by the
accountant, each of usis giving up the right to have the dispute decided in a court of law before a judge or
jury and instead we are accepting the use of arbitration for resolution. The prevailing party shall be entitled
to an award of reasonable attorneys fees and costs incurred in connection with the arbitration of the dispute
in an amount to be determined by the arbitrator.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the
significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know.

If the foregoing is acceptable to you, please complete and sign the origina copy of this letter in the space
provided and return the document to us in its entirety.

Sincerdly,
Anderson, Tackman & Company, PLC

Approved & Signed By:

Client Date
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om 990

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)
Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023

Open to Public
Inspection

A For the 2023 calendar year, or tax year beginning

, and ending

B Check if applicable:
Address change

C Name of organization

HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL
(HOME) OF MACKI NAC COUNTY

D Employer identification number

|:| Name change

Doing business as

38- 3330709

|:| Initial return

Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address)

396 N STATE STREET

Room/suite E Telephone number

906- 643- 6239

Final retumn/
terminated

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

|:| ST _| GNACE M_ 49781 G Gross receipts$ 206, 958
Amended retumn F Name and address of principal officer:
|:| Application pending JULIE H LL H(a) Is this a group return for subordinates? |:| Yes No
430 EL LSVVRTH H(b) Are all subordinates included? |:| Yes |:| No
ST | GNACE M 49781 If "No," attach a list. See instructions
| Tax-exempt status: X 501(c)(3) |_| 501(c) ( ) (insert no.) 4947(a)(1) or |_| 527
J Website: HTT PS / / FDVEO:IVAG(I NAC Vm[]DRESS C:C]VI H(c) Group exemption number

K Form of organization: m Corporation |_| Trust |_| Association |_| Other

| L Year of formation: 1997

| M State of legal domicile: M

Part | Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities:
8 .TO FAQ LI'TATE, ARRANGE AND CREATE ADEQUATE HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES WTH AN
5 L EMPHASI'S ON PERSONS OF LOW AND MODERATE INCOVE.
S|
8 2 Check this box |:| if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets
3 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, line ey 3 11
8 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 10y 4 11
g 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2023 (Part V, line22 5 3
g 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) 6 25
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C), ine12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line 11 ... ...............0cvveeiieiiiieiinnn.... 7o 0
Prior Year Current Year
o 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 147, 778 202, 358
g 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 5, 100 4, 600
& | 10 Investment income (Part VI, column (A), lines 3, 4,and 7d) 0
% | 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11¢) - 3, 240 - 3,264
12 Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) .. ... ... ... . 149, 638 203, 694
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 0
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), ine4) 0
? 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 94, 945 112, 808
@ | 16aProfessional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11¢) 0
;-). b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line25) 4, 219 ........
W1 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24¢) 28, 099 26, 081
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 123,044 138, 889
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 22 26, 594 64, 805
‘5§ Beginning of Current Year End of Year
§5 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) ... 115, 889 174, 547
<7| 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 18, 052 11, 905
3._%._ 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 .. ... . ... ... ... .. oo 97, 837 162, 642
Part Il Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.
S|gn Signature of officer Date
Here JULIE HLL PRESI DENT/ CHAI R
Type or print name and title
Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check |:| if | PTIN
Paid TOR_KRU SE, CPA TORKRU SE, CPA seffemployed | P02029414
Preparer Firm's name AN[ERSO\', TACKIVAN & COVPANY, PLC Firm's EIN 38' 1977929
Use Only 16978 S RILEY AVE
Firm's address KI ’\O_lELC]E, M 49788 Phone no. 906' 495' 5952

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions

[X[es [ [No_

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

DAA

Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38- 3330709 Page 2
Part Ill Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPart 1l ..o, |:|

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? |:| Yes No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program

services? |:| Yes No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 108, 490 including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ 2, 406 including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses  $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses 110, 896
DAA Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) HOUSI NG OPPCRTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38- 3330709 Page 3
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes [ No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule A 1 | X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructons 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part | 3 X
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part -~~~ 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-197 If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part it~ 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part| 6 X
7  Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Pt~ 7
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part Il 8
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Parttiv..# /. .~ === - ... 9
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi-endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Partv 10
11  If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,
VII, VIII, IX, or X, as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule D, Partvi 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Partvat 11b
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Partvat ... 1lic
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX 11d
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11e | X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11f X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts XIand XII ... 12a| X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and XIl is optional 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? If “Yes,” complete SchedueE 13 X
1l4a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts landtv......5 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts lland IV~~~ 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts itandtv.............................. 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I. See instrucions 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Partut 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VI, line 9a?
If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part 1l .. .. . 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If “Yes,” complete Schedule ...~ 20a X
b If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts land Il ... ... ............................ 21 X

DAA Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) HOUSI NG OPPCRTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38- 3330709 Page 4
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes | No

22  Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts landit-~~~~~~~ 22 X
23  Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J 23 X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 252 24a X
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period excepton? 24b
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c
d 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior

year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?

It "Yes," complete Schedule L Part| 25b X
26  Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partii -~~~ 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key

employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee

member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these

persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partut 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (See the Schedule

L, Part 1V, instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions).

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If

"Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV 28a X

A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Parttiv............... 28b X

A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? If

“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Parttlv. 28c X
29  Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Scheduem 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified

conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N, Parti 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule N, Parttit 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part| 33 X
34  Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, IlI,

orV,and PartVilinel 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(23y> 35a X

b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a

controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 35b
36  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable

related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Partvi 37
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and

19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. ... ... .. .. 38 | X

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

Yes | No
la Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable 1a | 2
Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable | 0
Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) WIiNNINGS t0 PriZe WINNEIS? . ... e e e e e e e e e e e 1c

DAA Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) HOUSI NG OPPORTUN TI ES MADE EQUAL 38- 3330709 Page 5
Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued) Yes No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 2a | 3
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 20 | X
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X
b If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedueo 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a X
b If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b X
If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? . ... 5¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributons? 6a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? 6b
7  Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? 7a
If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 7b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required t0 file FOrM 8282 7c
d If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? 79
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9  Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10  Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part vil, line 122 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club faciltes 10b
11  Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders lla
b  Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?> 12a
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ... ... ... ... ... | 12b |
13  Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than ore state? 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13b
¢ Enter the amount of reservesonhand 13c
1l4a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? l4a X
b If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedueo 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15
If “Yes,” see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? . .. .. . ... ... ... . ... 16
If “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
17  Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, any disqualified or other person engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 49537 . . . 17
If “Yes,” complete Form 6069.

DAA

Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38-3330709 Page 6

Part VI

Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"

response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthis Part VI ... ... ... . . . . .

Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes [ No
la Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year la 11
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain on Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent | 11
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 X
3  Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3 X
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 X
6  Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint
one or more members of the governing body? 7a | X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body?> 7b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:
The governing body? ga | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?> gsb | X
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization’s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedule O . ................. oo, .. 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes [ No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affliates? 10a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? .......................... 10b
lla Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 1lla X
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go t0 line13 ... = 12a| X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? | 12b X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”
describe on Schedule O how this was done 12c
13 13 X
14 14 X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management offical 152 | X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b X
If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year> 16a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to SUCh arrangemMeNntS? . .. .. . . . . .. e 16b
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be fled ™M
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
|:| Own website |:| Another's website Upon request |:| Other (explain on Schedule O)
19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,
and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records.
LORI PIER 396 N STATE STREET
ST | GNACE M 49781 906- 643- 6239
DAA Form 990 (2023)



80167

Form 990 (2023) HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38-3330709

Page 7

Part VI Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthis Part VIl ... ... |:|
Section A.  Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

la Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

o List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
e List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

o List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than

$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

o List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the

organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

©
A B Position D B E
Name( a:1d title Avér:-)lge égi,?;é::;igg;ei;hggﬂ? r; Repf)rt)ab!e Rep(()rt)ab!e Estimatéd) amount
oy | e s ey | g
(list any Qg__ z g § £ ;{,j organization (W-2/ organizations (W-2/ frf:)m.the
hours for S| E 3 =3| 3 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organization and
related g?_, s |- é §£’ £ 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) related organizations
organizations S| 2 g %
below Gl = 3| 8
dotted line) 3 % g
o KRI STI  HART
TR B 40. 00 -
EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR 0. 00 X 52,848 0
@ THOVAS CRONAN
R RRUTSTS VR RUTRSURRUTY O 1.00
D RECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0
@) AVANDA GARLOCK
SRR B 1.00
Dl RECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0
@ JENNI FER GOUDREAU
T RUURUURURR SO 1.00
D RECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0
eJULI E H LL
] 2.00
PRESI DENT/ CHAI R 0.00 [X 0 0
6 CRAI G LEHRKE
T RUORUURTORRN SO 1.00
D RECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0
@JULIE LIPN TZ
TR B 1.00
Dl RECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0
® CONNI E LI TZNER
RTTPRRUURUURUOROY B 1.00
SECRETARY 0.00 [X 0 0
© DAN LI TZNER
ST B 1.00
Dl RECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0
aopJUDY ST. LQUI S $COIT
TR B 1.00
D RECTOR 0.00 [X 0 0
a1 DARCY MCLEAN
TR O 1.00
VI CEPRESI DENT/ CHAI R 0.00 |[X 0 0

DAA
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Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
©
Position
A) ®) (do not check more than one ((®)] (B) (F)
Name and title Average box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours officer and a director/trustee) compensation compensation of other
per week ST = = from the from related compensation
(list any -2l 2 L § é(:at 2 organization (W-2/ organizations (W-2/ from the
hours for fa'é_‘ g 3‘ ® §§ ?D 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organization and
related g5 g EREN 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) related organizations
organizations B = 2 % E
below a| g o | 8
dotted line) e s 8
g
(12) MARY JO SAVARD
@ 1.00
TREASURER 0.00 (X 0 0
(13
(14)
(15)
(16)
@an
(18)
19)
1D SUBOTAl ... oo 52, 848
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A .. ... ... ... ...
d_Total (add lines 1b and 1C) .. ..o\v.iiirr et 52, 848
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
INOVIURL 4 X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person .. ... ... ... .. . . i, 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1  Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

Name and

(A)
business address

(B
Description of services

©
Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization

DAA
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Part Vi

Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII

QY

Total revenue

B)
Related or exempt
function revenue

©
Unrelated
business revenue

(D)
Revenue excluded
from tax under
sections 512-514

Contributions, Gifts, Grants
and Other Similar Amounts

1

Q

D o O T

Federated campaigns la

Membership dues 1b

Fundraising events 1c

14, 146

Related organizations 1d

Government grants (contributions) le

170, 014

All other contributions, gifts, grants,

and similar amounts not included above ........ 1f

18, 198

Noncash contributions included in
lines 1a-1f 1g |$

85

202, 358

Pro%ram Service
evenue

2a

Q@ -~ ®© o O T

. STIPEND - NMBSHDA, SMIMD

Business Code

4, 600

4, 600

4, 600

Other Revenue

¢ Gain or (loss) 7c
Netgainor (I0SS) ...,

8a

9a

10a

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts)

(i) Real

(i) Personal

Gross rents 6a

Less: rental expenses [ 6b

Rental inc. or (loss) 6¢C

Net rental income or (I0SS) ..., ...

Gross amount from (i) Securities

(ii) Other

sales of assets
other than inventory 7a

Less: cost or other
basis and sales exps. [ 7b

Gross income from fundraising events
(not including  $ 14, 146

of contributions reported on line
1c). See Part IV, line 18 8a

Less: direct expenses 8b

Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ..........

-3, 264

Gross income from gaming
activities. See Part IV, line 19 9a

Less: direct expenses 9b

Net income or (loss) from gaming activities ............

Gross sales of inventory, less

returns and allowances 10a

10b

Miscellaneous
Revenue

1lla

® o o T

Business Code

12

203, 694

4, 600

0 0

DAA
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Form 990 (2023)

HOUSI NG COPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL

38- 3330709

Part IX

Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, ®) ® © ©)
Total expenses Program service Management and Fundraising
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1  Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line 22
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and
foreign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 52, 848 43, 575 7,835 1,438
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Other salaries and wages 51, 699 44,128 5, 882 1, 689
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)
9 Other employee benefts
10 Payroll taxes 8,261 6, 856 1, 165 240
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management
b Legat
¢ Accountng 5,126 5,126
d Lobbying
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment management fees
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, fist line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.) 2, 593 2, 593
12 Advertising and promotion 780 780
13 Office expenses 934 862 72
14 Information technology
15 Royaltes
16 Occupancy ... 4,835 3, 060 1,020 755
17 Travel 1, 806 1, 806
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest
21 Payments to affiliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 694 694
23 Insurance 1,775 1,775
24 Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
a SUPPLIES 2, 660 2,455 205
b TELEPHONE 2,208 2,136 72
¢ . HOVEOARERSHI P COUNSELI NG 1,925 1,925
d  MSCELLANEQUS 745 720 25
e Al other expenses
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e . . .. 138, 889 110, 896 23, 774 4, 219
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaian and
fundraising solicitation. Check herelﬁ if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) ... ............
DAA Form 990 (2023)



80167

Form 990 (2023) HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38- 3330709 Page 11
Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X ... .. . ettt e e, D_
) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing 96, 598 1 158, 142
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 10,575] 3 10, 579
4  Accounts receivable, net 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
%) under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 6
qguj 7 Notes and loans receivable, n et 7
<[ 8 Inventories forsaleoruse 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of SchedueD 10a 6, 182
b Less: accumulated depreciaton 10b 4,417 637] 10c 1, 765
11 Investments—publicly traded securites 11
12 Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line1z 12
13 Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line1z. ...~ 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line1z 8, 079] 15 4, 061
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (mustequal line 33) ... ... ... .. ... .. ... .. ..... 115, 889 16 174, 547
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 9,973] 17 7,844
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilites 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
? 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
h= trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
E controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22
—[23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third paries 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third partes 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D ... 8,079] 25 4,061
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 .. ... . . 18, 052 26 11, 905
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
:_% 27 Net assets without donor restricions 97, 837 27 162, 642
@ |28 Net assets with donor restrictions 28
2 Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here D
i and complete lines 29 through 33.
i 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 29
‘a‘ug 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 30
£ |31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 31
|32 Total netassets or fund balances 97,837] 3 162, 642
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . ............. ... i 115, 889 33 174, 547

DAA

Form 990 (2023



80167

Form 990 (2023) HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38- 3330709 Page 12
Part Xl Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI ... . Zl_
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 203, 694
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 138, 889
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from lipez 64, 805
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)) 97, 837
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments
6 Donated services and use of facilites
7 Investment expenses
8 Prior period adjustments
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O)
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line
32, COMUMN (B)) ...\t 10 162, 642
Part Xl Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X1 |:|
Yes | No

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash Accrual |:| Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain on
Schedule O.

2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.
|:| Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b | X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.
Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

c If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c | X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule O.

3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the

Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, SubpartF? 3a X

b If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the

required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits ........................... 3b
Form 990 (2023)
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SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support OME No. 15450047
(Form 990) Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 2023
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization HOUSI NG CPPORTUNI TI ES NMADE EQJAL Employer identification number
(HOVE) OF NMACKI NAC COUNTY 38- 3330709
Part | Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)
A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii).
A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,
City, AN SIS
An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.)
A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(V).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:
An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its

support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses

acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part ll.)

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

2
3
4

O OO0 X O 117

10

Q

|:| Type |. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b |:| Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c |:| Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d |:| Type Il non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e |:| Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, Type I
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f  Enter the number of supported organizations |:|

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization (iv) Is the organization (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of
organization (described on lines 1-10 listed in your governing support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) instructions)
Yes No
)
B)
©
D)
(E)
Total
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38-3330709 Page 2
Part Il Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part Ill. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lll.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.”) 123,942 144, 666 110, 602 147,778 202, 358 729, 346
2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge
4  Total. Add lines 1 through3 123,942 144, 666 110, 602 147,778 202, 358 729, 346
5  The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column ()
6 Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4 .. 729, 346
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
7 Amounts from ined4 123, 942 144, 666 110, 602 147, 778 202, 358 729, 346
8  Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources . .. ... ... ...
9  Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carried on ... . ... ... ..
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VL) .....................
11  Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 729, 346
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) | 12 33,392
13  First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this boX and StOD NI . il |_|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2023 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, colurin ¢y . 14 100.00%
15  Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Il, line 24 15 100. 00 %
16a 33 1/3% support test — 2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton
b 33 1/3% support test — 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton |:|
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization |:|
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization |:|
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see

instructions

............................................................................................................................................ []

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38-3330709

Page 3

Part I Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il.

If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023

(f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any “unusual grants.”)

2 Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is related to the

organization's tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf

5  The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge

6  Total. Add lines 1 through 5

7a  Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

C Add Ilnes 7a and 7b .....................

8  Public support. (Subtract line 7c from
line6)

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023

(f) Total

9  Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources ...

b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on . ...

12 Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Partvty

13  Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,
and12)

14  First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

15  Public support percentage for 2023 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, coumn () 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Il line 15 . oo 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage

17 Investment income percentage for 2023 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, couron ¢ 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 18 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests — 2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line
17 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

b 33 1/3% support tests — 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization.................
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions .........................

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38-3330709 Page 4
Part IV Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 on Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If “Yes,” answer
lines 3b and 3c below. 3a

b  Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination. 3b
¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? If
“Yes,” and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part |, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4da

b  Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”
answer lines 5b and 5c¢ below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b  Type I or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization's organizing document? 5b
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity

with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line
7? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations

described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b  Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? If “Yes,” answer line 10b below. 10a
b  Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38-3330709 Page 5

Part IV Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes No

11  Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? 1lla
b A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b
A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? If “Yes” to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,
provide detail in Part VI. 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 2

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If “No,” describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s). 1

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If “No,” explain in Part VI
how the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have

a significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard. 3
Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

c The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).
2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes No
a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,

how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a
b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's
involvement, one or more of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If
“Yes,” explain in Part VI the reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would
have engaged in these activities but for the organization’s involvement. 2b
3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,” provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b

DAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

HOUSI NG COPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL

38-3330709 Page 6

Part V

Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1

|:|Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See

instructions. All other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A — Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year

(optional)
1 Net short-term capital gain 1
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2
3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3
4 Add lines 1 through 3. 4
5 Depreciation and depletion 5
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection
of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of
property held for production of income (see instructions) 6
7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8
Section B — Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ®) Cur.rent vear
(optional)
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
a Average monthly value of securities la
b Average monthly cash balances 1b
¢ _Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c) 1d
e Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(explain in detalil in Part VI):
2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3
4  Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions). 4
5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5
6 Multiply line 5 by 0.035. 6
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8
Section C — Distributable Amount Current Year
1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A) 1
2 Enter 0.85 of line 1. 2
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A) 3
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4
5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6
7 Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization

(see instructions).

DAA

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

HOUSI NG COPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL

38-3330709 Page 7

Part V

Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D — Distributions

Current Year

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

N [

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required—provide details in Part VI)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

W [N [o |0 | |w

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

W [N o [0 [ |w N

Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6

10

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

10

Section E — Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

@)

Excess Distributions

(i)
Underdistributions
Pre-2023

(iii)
Distributable
Amount for 2023

Distributable amount for 2023 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2023
(reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See
instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2023

From 2018

From 2019

From 2020 ..................................

From 2021

From 2022 . . il

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

SKQ [0 |20 |T|L

Applied to 2023 distributable amount

Carryover from 2018 not applied (see instructions)

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

Distributions for 2023 from
Section D, line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2023 distributable amount

¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2023, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6  Remaining underdistributions for 2023. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7  Excess distributions carryover to 2024. Add lines 3]
and 4c.

8  Breakdown of line 7:

a Excess from 2019 .. ... .. ...
b Excess from 2020 ..........................
c Excess from 2021 .. ... ... . ..o,
d Excess from 2022 ... . ... ... ... .............
e Excess from 2023

DAA

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38-3330709 Page 8
Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part
lll, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

DAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements OMB No. 15450047
(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, 2023
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL

(HOVE) OF NMACKI NAC COUNTY 38- 3330709

Part | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 6.
(@) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Aggregate value atend of year L
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control?
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used
only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring Impermissible Prvate DeNMEfit 2 . . e eeeeiiieiiis |:| Yes |:| No
Part Il Conservation Easements
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area
Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure
Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

13, N U RN
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Q
Q
=
@
Q
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@
<
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c
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o
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Q
=
N
>
=
w
=
o
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—
o
c
=.
>
Q
<
@
o
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easement on the last day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation easements 2a
b 2b
c 2c
d

Number of conservation easements included on line 2c acquired after July 25, 2006, and not

on a historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it hods? |:| Yes |:| No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

and section 170M@BYINZ . ..o oo []ves [ ] No
9 In Part XIll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and balance

sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the

organization's accounting for conservation easements.
Part Il Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

la If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works

of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public

service, provide in Part XIlII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items.

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 $

(i) Assets included in Form 990, Part X $

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items.

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 S
b _Assets included in FOrM 990, Part X . ... ...l $
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2023

DAA
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 HOUSI NG OPPORTUN TI1 ES MADE EQUAL 38-3330709 Page 2

Part llI Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply).

a Public exhibition d H Loan or exchange program

b Scholarly research e Other

c Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part
Xill.

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar

assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? .. ............................... |:| Yes |:| No

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.

la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

included on Form 990, Part X? |:| Yes |:| No

b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XlIl and complete the following table.

Amount

Beginning balance 1c

1d

Distributions during the year le

- ® QO O
>
Q.
=
=
o
=]
7]
Q.
c
=
=]
«
—
=3
@
<
@
D
=

Ending balance 1f

2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? |:| Yes
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part Xlll. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII

| No

Part V Endowment Funds
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back

la Beginning of year balance

b Contributons

¢ Net investment earnings, gains, and
losses

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment %
b Permanent endowment

¢ Term endowment
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by: Yes

No

(i) Unrelated organizations? 3a(i)

(i) Related organizations? 3a(ii)

b If “Yes” on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3b

4 Describe in Part Xl the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other basis (c) Accumulated (d) Book value

(investment) (other) depreciation

la Land

¢ Leasehold improvements

d Equipment

6,182 4,417 1, 765

e Other

Total. Add lines la through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 10c, column (B)) .. . . . . . . .. .. . . . . . . . .. . ... .. ... .. l, 765

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023

DAA



80167

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 HOUSI NG CPPCRTUN TI ES MADE EQUAL 38- 3330709 Page 3
Part VII Investments — Other Securities
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:

(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives

Part VIl Investments — Program Related
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:

Cost or end-of-year market value

@
&)
(©)
4
(©)
(6)
@)
(8)
©)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 13, col. (B))
Part IX Other Assets
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value

(€))

&)

(©)

4

®)

(6)

@)

)

(©)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 15, col. (B))

Part X Other Liabilities
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,
line 25.

1 (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes
(2) OPERATI NG LEASE LIABILITY 4,061
3
4
®)
(6)
)
8
©)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 25, Col. (B)) . 4, 061
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XllI, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIlII

DAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 HOUSI NG OPPORTUN TI1 ES MADE EQUAL 38- 3330709 Page 4
Part Xl Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial stataments 1 206, 958
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:
a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a
b Donated services and use of facilites 2b
¢ Recoveries of prior year grants 2c
d Other (Describe in Part Xy 2d 3,264
e Add lines 2athrough 2d =~ 2e 3, 264
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3 203, 694
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XIL) 4b
C Addlinesd4aand4b 4c
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part |, line 12.) ... ... . ... .. .. .. ... . ... .............. 5 203, 694
Part XIl  Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 142, 153
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:
a Donated services and use of facilites 2a
b Prior year adjustments 2b
c Otherlosses 2c
d Other (Describe in Part Xy 2d 3,264
€ Add lines 2a through 2d 2e 3, 264
3 Subtract fine 2e from fine 1 3 138, 889
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b 4a
b Other (Describe in Partxuty 4b
C Addlines4aand4b 4c
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.) ... ... . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . ... 5 138, 889
Part Xlll Supplemental Information
Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line
2; Part X, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XlI, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.
CPART XI, LINE 2D - REVENUE AMOUNTS | NCLUDED IN FINANGIALS - OTHER
CDERECT FUNDRAISING EXPENSES $ 3,264
CPART XI1, LINE 2D - EXPENSE AMOUNTS INCLUDED IN FINANCIALS - OTHER
- D RECT FUNDRAI SI NG EXPENSES $ 3, 264

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2023  HOUSI NG OPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL 38- 3330709 Page 5

Part Xlll Supplemental Information (continued)

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2023
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization FQJS| [\G GDPGQTUN| TI ES MADE EQJAL Employer identification number
(HOVE) OF NACKI NAC COUNTY 38- 3330709

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 7A - ELECTION OF MEMBERS AND THEIR Rl GHTS

FORM 990, PART M, LINE 11B - ORGANIZATION S PROCESS TO REVIEW FORM 990
FORM 990, PART M, LINE 12C - ENFCRCEMENT OF CONFLICTS POLICY ...
FORM 990, PART M, LINE 15A - COVPENSATI ON PROCESS FOR TOP OFFIQAL
FORM 990, PART VI, 'LINE 19 - GOVERNI NG DOCUMENTS DI SCLOSURE EXPLANATION

- FORM 990, PART XlI, LINE 9 - OTHER CHANGES I N NET ASSETS EXPLANATI ON

DI RECT FUNDRAI SI NG EXPENSES $ 3,264

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990) 2023

DAA
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Schedule O (Form 990) 2023

Page 2

Name of the organization

HOUSI NG COPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQUAL

Employer identification number

38- 3330709

PAGE 1 OF 1

DAA

Schedule O (Form 990) 2023
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rom 990 Tax Return History 2023
Name HOUSI NG CPPORTUNI TI ES MADE EQJAL Employer Identification Number
(HOVE) COF NACKI NAC COUNTY 38- 3330709
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Contributions, gifts, grants 123,942 144, 666 110, 602 147,778 202, 358

Membership dues

Program service revenue 7,875 5, 500 5, 500 5,100 4,600

Capital gainorloss

Investment income

Fundraising revenue (income/loss) 2, 020 - 3, 240 - 3, 264

Gaming revenue (income/loss)

Other revenue

Total revenve 133, 837 150, 166 116, 102 149, 638 203, 694

Grants and similar amounts paid

Benefits paid to or for members

Compensation of officers, etc. 48, 381 51, 643 40, 214 43, 789 52, 848

Other compensaton 28, 664 25, 454 35, 259 51, 156 59, 960

Professional fees 6, 006 6, 436 5, 990 7,332 7,719

Occupancy costs 4,480 4,080 4,080 4,461 4,835

Depreciation and depleton 429 1,123 872 694 694

Other expenses 42, 425 35, 540 11, 434 15, 612 12,833

Total expenses 130, 385 124, 276 97, 849 123, 044 138, 889

Excess or (Deficity 3,452 25, 890 18, 253 26, 594 64, 805

Total exempt revenve 133, 837 150, 166 116, 102 149, 638 203, 694

Total unrelated revenue

Total excludable revenue 7,875 5, 500 5, 500 5,100 4, 600

Total Assets 33,975 58, 482 76,112 115, 889 174, 547

Total Liabiltes 6, 875 5,492 4,869 18, 052 11, 905

Net Fund Balances 27,100 52,990 71,243 97, 837 162, 642




80167 Housing Opportunities Made Equal
38-3330709 Federal Statements
FYE: 12/31/2023

Form 990, Part IX, Line 119 - Other Fees for Service (Non-employee

Total Program Management &
Description Expenses Service General
CREDI T REPORTS $ 2,593 $ 2,593 $

TOTAL $ 2,593 $ 2,593 $ 0

@

Fund
Raising




80167 Housing Opportunities Made Equal

38-3330709
FYE: 12/31/2023

Federal Statements

Schedule A, Part Il, Line 1(e)

Description Amount
VSHDA 170, 014
UNI TED WAY 4,709
CONTRI BUTI ONS 8, 489
M NOPROFI T RELI EF GRANT 5, 000

CHRI STMAS  AUCTI ON
CASH CONTRI BUTI ON 14,146
TOTAL 202, 358
Schedule A, Part 1, Line 12 - Current year

Description Amount

STI PEND - NBHDA, SMIND 4, 600

CHRI STVMAS AUCTI ON
TOTAL

4, 600




Annual Update February 21, 2024

H.O.M.E. OF MACKINAC COUNTY
STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE
February 21, 2024

l. VISION & MISSION STATEMENTS

VISION:

The Upper Peninsula of Michigan is a place where all people are in adequate, affordable
homes, which will have a positive effect on families, children, and adults, toward the
betterment of the community.

MISSION:

H.O.M.E. of Mackinac County is a not-for-profit organization established to facilitate,
arrange and create adequate housing for all people with an emphasis on affordable
homeownership. H.O.M.E. shall provide affordable housing for persons of low and moderate
income. Housing Opportunities Made Equal of Mackinac County shall provide housing
counseling services

1. PARTNERS

Governmental Organizations

Current

City of Mackinac Island, City of St. Ignace, Sault Tribe of Chippewa Indians, MSHDA,
HUD, Mackinac County and additional counties of Alger, Baraga, Chippewa, Delta,
Dickinson, Gogebic, Houghton, Iron, Keweenaw, Luce, Marquette, Menominee, Ontonagon
and Schoolcraft

Organizations

Current

Brandon Postma Investment Strategies, Breakwater Federal Credit Union, Central Savings
Bank, Cheeseman Insurance, Chippewa-Luce-Mackinac Community Action Agency,
Chippewa County Credit Union, Coldwell Banker, CEDAM, CoreLogic Credco,
Department of Human Services, eHome America, Embers Credit Union, Evashevski Law
Office, First National Bank of St. Ignace, First National Bank of Wakefield, Flagstar ,
Horizon Realty U.P., Huntington Bank, Les Cheneaux Community Foundation, Lions Clubs,
Mackinac County Child and Family Roundtable, Mackinac County MSU Extension,
Mackinac Island Community Foundation, Mackinac Properties, Mackinac Surveys, Moran
Township School, NeighborWorks, North Star Habitat, Newberry Area Ministerial
Association, Sayles Real Estate, Sault Ste. Marie Tribe of Chippewa Indians Housing
Authority, Soo Coop Credit Union, St. Ignace Area Public Schools, St. Ignace Chamber of
Commerce, St. Ignace Area HOPE, St. Ignace Area Kiwanis,St. Ignace Area Visitor’s
Bureau, St. Ignace Area Community Foundation,United Way of the Eastern Upper
Peninsula, U.P. State Credit Union, USDA Rural Development and Wells Fargo

Potential
EnBridge Energy Partners EEP, Graymont and MEA-Mackinac Economic Alliance.

HOME Strategic Plan
February 21, 2024
Page 1 of 4



1. SWOT ASSESSMENT

STRENGTHS (Internal)

Annual Update February 21, 2024

OPPORTUNITIES (External)

Have successfully completed nine HRFgrants

14 Homes built and sold to date, 11
HPR projects completed.

Positive standing with MSHDA for Grants

Encouraged by MSHDA to seek funding when
available.

United Way Partner Agency

Additional office space options within City Hall

Previous experience as
AmeriCorps Host Site

Diverse Board of Directors and good
committee support.

Continued demand to provide certified
Homebuyer & Home Ownership Counseling and
Education due to current economy and lack of
agencies UP wide providing the service.

Good standing with community and
funders. Previous recognition MSHDA
Counseling Agency of the year.

Increasing hours of part time staff provided
opportunity to continue foreclosure prevention
program and expand financial literacy education.

Financially Stable with satisfactory
audit at year end.

Accepted as a United Way of EUP partner agency
and allocated funds for 2023-2024.

Knowledgeable and experienced staff

Staff trained to assist with MI Bridges
Navigation

Continued involvement in Collaborative and Local
Planning Bodies, efforts, expanding partnerships
at local & regional level and state level with
Balance of State CoC.

Knowledgeable in grant writing

Funding Availability through MSHDA/
HUD for HEP - Homeownership Education
Program and FSS for Case Management

Continued partnership with Sault Tribe Housing.

Partnership with eHome America has increased
ability to offer Homebuyer Education and FSS
financial management courses.

Agency certified through NCHEC for
Homeownership Education Counseling
and HUD Certified Housing Agency.

Presentation to potential partners about
H.O.M.E.'s services.

Continued partnership with Huntington and Flagstar
Banks

WEAKNESSES (Internal)

THREATS (External)

Funding for Home Purchase Rehab
program depleted.

Funding (long term planning)

Grant Funds allow no room for contingencies; one
or two year cycles make long term planning
difficult.

Vision for beyond proposed grant terms is
limited

Increasing property values make it a challenge for
moderate income applicants to qualify for a
mortgage that can support market prices for
homes.

Long Term Funding for Development
limited due to “place-making” policy

Competition for limited resources. Federal funding
for community development and Foreclosure
Prevention is decreasing.

Two person office is vulnerable to
instability if staff are unexpectedly
unable to work.

Affordable Housing Stock is limited

Potential for unknown risks due to Covid-19

Lacking tech skills to keep equip updated

Potential for rising interest rates.
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Annual Update February 21, 2024

STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS BY COMMITTEE

PROJECT COMMITTEE: 2024

1.

Seek new funding to assist first time home buyers with down-payment assistance and
moderate rehabilitation.

Continue seeking partnerships with financial institutes utilizing CRA grant funds to
increase outreach and Homeownership Education/Counseling.

Continue to provide Homeownership Education/Counseling serving as a MSHDA
HEP and HUD Sub-Grantee, maintain HUD agency certification.

Facilitate financial workshops and counseling through United Way Funding.

Provide FSS (Family Self Sufficiency) Coordination to to all 15 counties of the U.P.
through 12/31/2024

Continue collaborative efforts with other housing/planning organizations such as the
Mackinac County Human Service Collaborative, EUP Local Planning Body, CLM-
CAA, Sault Ste. Marie Tribe of Chippewa Indians, City of St. Ignace, Michigan BoS
CoC (Balance of State Continuum of Care) MSUE, USDA Rural Development,
Habitat for Humanity and United Way of the EUP (ongoing).

Provide Education to financial institutions.

FINANCE COMMITTEE: 2024

1.

4.

Review and monitor annual budget. Review audit results and take appropriate action.
Provide oversight with checks and balances of financial operations.

Begin in September of each year to develop Budget Proposal for upcoming year.

Work with Personnel Committee to assist in identifying funding available within
current budget for changes in employee wage and fringe benefits.

Quarterly review of the revenue vs. expenditures report.

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE: 2024

Review long and short term funding opportunities prior to annual meeting to make
revisions and recommendations. Additional meetings will take place throughout
the year as needed to review new funding opportunities.

Plan and carry out a minimum of one annual fundraising event. In 2024 the event
will be the Christmas Auction with the goal of raising $10,000. In 2023 we netted
just over $9,300.
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3. Investigate and pursue on-line options for donations.

4. Continue to seek United Way funding for the Financial Freedom Program
expanding outreach and partnerships for financial workshops and MI Bridges
Navigation.

5. Continue to secure and explore partnerships to support programs that are mutually

beneficial (cash or in-kind).

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE: 2024

1. Maintain a diverse Board of Directors by recruiting individuals with expertise in areas
not strongly represented by current members.

2. Present new members for nomination and proposed slate of officers at annual
meeting.

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE: 2024

1. Conduct annual performance evaluation of Executive Director to present and be
approved by the full board at the December Board of Directors Meeting.

2. Executive Director will complete annual performance evaluations of all staff.

3. Consult with Finance Committee to recommend any changes in compensation or
fringe benefits.

4. Review workload and make recommendations regarding additional staffing as
needed. Work with the Planning & Development Committee to implement any
additional positions.
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